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U.S. NUCLEAR REGUL ATORY COMMISSION
REGION IV

NRC Inspection Report No. 030-06402'91-01

-License No. 42-02964-01

Licensee: Western Atlas International
Atles Wireline Services
P.O. Box 1407
Houston, Texas 77251-1407

8

--Facility Name: Western Atlas International

Inspection At: . Western Atlas international
Yukon, Oklatoma, and Houston, Texas

Inspection Conducted: September 6, 7, and 11,- 1991

Inspectors: Selvan Rajendran, Radiation Specialist
Nuclear Materials Licensing Section

Wesley L._Holley, Radiation Specialist
' Nuclear Materials Licensing Section
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ibs: Approveai
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Wfiliam L. Fisner, Chief, Nuclear Materiais Date
Licensing Section

Inspection Summary.

Insoection Conducted September 6-7 and 11. 1991 (NRC Insoection
Report 030-06402/91-01)

Areas Insoected: This was a special,. announced radiation safety inspection.-of
a byprocuct material: program authorizing the use-of seeled sources;for-well

-logging activities, fhe= inspection' activities concerneo the loss on
(September 5,'1991, of a12-curie Cs-137-sealed source from the licensee's
-vehicle near Huntsville, Texas. The inspection _ included the review of-
-orgafeization, managemen.t,: training, radiation protection,._ independent
measurements, notification, Rand transportation activities.

Resultst -In the areas inspected, seven apparent: violations.were identified:
f ailure to adequately block,: brace, or secure the transport package to the
transporting vehicle (paragraph 3); failure to adequately secure the'

radioactive sealed source'in the shipping container (paragraph 3); failure to-

'
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number the pages of the shipping paper .Inaragraph 3)t. failure to include an
emergency response telephone number on 1 shipping paper (paragraph 3); . |
omitting the required "RQ" designation on the shipping paper (paragraph 3); - :

f ailure to properly label transport packages (paragraph 3); and f ailure to |
.

. notify the. Department of Transportation of a lost source incicent '

iparagraph 5). ;

i

i
i

i

,

!

,

k

:
,

,

.
.

! + ee -..h-+ ttw%4 -.c>+ty--sms%---e.g4-,,- .* ts.--s.mm+..g1 -.---------.m--i.- - - - - . - - - --wi



. - . - - . .. - - = - - - - - . ~ . - . - - . _ - . - - . _ - - -

d..

_

-3-

DETAILS

1.- Persons Contacted

* Jack Wasson, Safety Manager, Eastern and Western Regions
* Jim _ West, District 2, Manager
Bill Rose, Radiation Protection Officer.(RPO)

** David Norman, Safety Director
~ ** Kerry Richards, Logging Supervisor / Engineer

**Garwin Deroin, Truck Driver

Brian Buffington,1 Truck Driver
Joe Williams, Truck Driver

**Caren S. Krochenski, Personnel Manager
**J.: Rene Casarsa, Senior Vice President, Western Hemisphere Operations
**Jeck Pittman, Regional Technical Manager.
** Tom Schabel', Regional Manager, Eastern Continental Operations

Michael C. Vredenburg, Texas Department of Health, Radiation Control
- Program, Program Manager, Region IV

*Present at exit interview on September 6, 1991, at Yukon, Oklahoma.
**Present at exit interview on September 7, 1991, at Houston, Texas.

2. Oraanization, Management and Training

The. licensee's RP0 is responsible for licensec activities using byproouct
-

material. The'RP0's-effor.ts are-direct.d to the logging
superviscrs/ engineers and their assistants via'the' district managers and
line-suoervisors. The licensee's raciation program functions in
conjunction with the safety organization.

-

-The insoectors reviewed selected training recorcs ano interviewed
personnel concerning radiation protection and transportation proceoures.
Personnel appeared to be knowledgeeble in these areas.

1No acoarent violations or deviations-were identified.

'3. Transcorcation Activitits

On SeptemberJ5, 1991, at-2:30 a.m., a licensee convoy consisting of two
-perforating-trucks and a car left the licensee's Yukon, Oklahoma, district .

E office.- The two trucks contained 23' radioactive' sealed sources that were
:being transferred.to the licensee's facility in Houston, Texas. The
-logging engineer / supervisor who supervisad the transfer followeo the
trucks in the car. - The convoy stoppec at an Oklahoma Highway Department

'

weigh station onLInterstate.35 outside of Davis, Oklahoma, and then
proceeded to-the licensee's facility' located at U.S. Highway 70 anc
Interstate 35 at Ardmore, Oklahoma, where another truck joined the convoy-

at approximately 4:30 a.m. In the vicinity of Corsicana, Texas, the

convoy entered.a severe rainstorm which continued to Houston. As the

:
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convoy was exiting Interstate 45 at Huntsville. Texas, at approximately ,
,

10:30 a.m., one of the perforating trucks from Yukon. Oklehoma, lost a '

2. curie Cs-137 sealed source, (Snurce No. 899. Model 53T20) used for
density measurements in well logging activities. This source was in a ;

Type A shipping container, Part No. 080729. The convoy continued to ~

Houston, not realizing that a source had been lost until arrival at
12 10 p.m.

4

The licensee inmedi6tely notified the state of Texas. The licensee <

initiated a search f or ti.e source between 1:30 and 2 p A. on September 5, .

1991, in Yukon, Oklahoma. Personnel Icit the Yukon facility with a survey
instrument e obe outside the vehicle window and retraced the path of the
convoy to Moore, Oklahomc. They drove approximately 25 mph and
specifically concentrated on the curves of the entra. ices and exits of the
route. At 3 p.m. the licensee dispatched a vehicle f.aom Ardmore. !

Oklahoma with two survey instruments. This survey was performed at ebout !
20 moh on-Interstate 35 from Ardmore to the Oklahoma / Texas state line. A

logging Truck with a logging dete; tor exposeo left the Yukon, Oklahoma. t

facility at 3:30 p.m. and retracted the route of tbc convoy to Dallas. |

Texas, surveying for the lost source.

At approximately 5:30 p.m. on Thursday, September 5,1991, a citizen
spotted the. shipping container lying on the gravel shoulder about 20 feet
from the southeast corner of '.he intersection of the exit road and
underpass road. The underpass roaa passes under the interstate to a
tervice ioad and truck stop. The Lource was close to the edge of the
9nderpass road, approximately 7 feet from the center of the road. The
source evidently fell out of the truck as it was turning at the
intersection and was reported to be 3-4 feet from the shipping container.
A citizen notified the Huntsville Police Department, which dispa*.hed a
police officer-to the sce-ne.- The police officer is believed to have held
the sourcs for about 5 seconds before dropping the source approximately ;

6 to 12 inches from the container. The area was closed to the public
until a member of the city's emergency management services retrieved the
sourcci using 2 knives as a hendling tool, and placed it back into the
shipping container et approximately 6:15 p.m. The shipping container's
shield' plug was missing. Licensee perscnnel placed the source in a

'

complete shipping container. at approximately 7:30 p.m..
,

The be of=the perforating truck from which the source was lost was a flat ,

4

steel -ek with no obstructions at the rear of the truck except for a-

canvas ov.er held in place with four elastic straps. During
.

4

.

transportation,'several shipping containers were fastened on the. truck bed
by locks attached to the container hast ' and to it.e 3/8. inch diameter- ,

links of a steel chain, which wat attached to structural members of the i

t r uck '. The. chain did.not surrount the shipping containers, which
therefore were free to move on the + ruck bed. Apparently, this slack
allowed-the snipping containers to accelerate when the vehicle turned
corners, pulling the basp out of the body-of the lock.ano allowing the
shipping container containing the 2-curie Cs-137 sealed source to fall out
of the back of the truck. 'This is an coparent violation of
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10 CFR 39.01(b)(2), which requires packages to be physically secure in the
transporting vehicle to prevent accidental loss of liccnsed material from,

the vehicle,
i.

,

During the inspection, it was determinec that the lerge safety pin that is !i

supposed to be attached to the safety bar securing the shipping container |
shield plug was missing. This allowed the safety bar to slide out of ^

position, anu the plug and source to come out of the shipping container.
,

The inspectors also noted that the safety bar and safety pin were missing i
,

from another Cs-137 source shipping container. These are
apparent violations of 10 CFR 71.87(b) and (c), v.hich rr, ire, in part,
that prior to each shipment of licensed n.aterial, the ' oee shall
ensure that the package is in unimpelred physical conc.t ot, and that each

-closure device of the package is properly installed end securert.

A review of the shipping papers revealed radiation-levels corresponding to
YELLOW _!!! labels. _However.- the containers wera labellcd YELLOW 11. This--

is an apparent violation of 10 CFR 71.5 and 49 CFR 172.403(b), which
reouire inat the proper label be af fixed to a shipping container based on
the radiation level et the surface of the peckage end the transport index.

I

Further examinatten of the shipping papers for the September 5, 1991.
' transport of-11cented material revealed that the shipping papers contained

-more than one page but were not consecutively numbered 35 required by i

10 CFR 71.5 and 49 CFR 172.201(c). This is an apparert violation. Also. ;

theshippingpaper,(didnotcontainanemergencyreslonsetelepnone
number. This is an apparent violatic; of the recuirements of 10 CFR 71.5

and 49 CFR 172.201(a). Ih: snipp1 G per also did not Tontain the
' letters "RQ" before or after the basic description of the radioattive

material being shipped. This is an apparen n iolation of 10 CFR 71.5 ano
49 172.203(c)(2).-

Six apparent violations,were identified.

4. Rec'iation Protection

The inspectors briefly reviewed selected aspects vi the radiation i

protection program.- Personnel-involved in the sourc) shipment were found
to have adequately utilizec personnel dosimetry anc to have followed
appropriate radiation protection procedures.

The Hunttville -Texas, police officer who responded when the source was
discover;d migh_t have received a-dose of approximately 100 rems to_his
hands'if, as_ alleged, he_ picked up the seurce for approximately 5 seconds.-

The state of Texas is investigating this aspect of the incident. !

No apparent violations or deviations were identified.
,

:
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5. Notifications and Reports

The licensee notified the state of Te>as timely, but failed to notify the
Department of Transportation (00T) as required by 10 CFR 71.5 end
49 CFR l?l.15(a)(2). This is an apparent viofation. ;

,

One apparent violation was identified, i
;

6. Exit Interview !
!

The inspectors tret with the licensee representatives denoted in
paragraph I at the conclusion of the inspection on September 6 end 7, f

1991, and summarized the purpose, scope, and finaings of the inspection.
On September 11, 1991, fiRC Region IV and licensee personnel discussed
certain aspects of the incident by telephone. s
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PROPOSED ENFORCEMENT C0fiFERENCE AGENDA

WESTERN AllAS If4TERNAT10N
ATLAS WIRELINE SERVICES

,

OCTOBER 1, 1991

|

I. INTRODUCTION AND FURPOSE OF MEETING E. J. BUTCHER

11. NRC Ol$ CUSS 10N OF APPARENi V!0LAT10 tis W. L. FISHER ,

S. RAJENDRAN ,

ti. L h0LLEY

!!! LICENSEE COMM iTS AND RES J. GRESPAM
E. ROSE
J. WASSCN
D. NORMAN

|

IV. EliFORCEMEtiT POLICY G. F. SANB0RN
,

V. CLOSING COMMEt4TS E. J. BUTCHER

,
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